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From: Grost, Richard (PacifiCorp)
To: BRANDT Jason R * ODFW; BARANWAL Parul * DEQ; THOMPSON Valerie * DEQ; Craig Kohanek
(ron.c.kohanek@oregon.gov); SANCHEZ Martin * WRD; Hancock, Jedidiah - FS; Kim, Sophia - FS, GLIDE, OR

Cc: Albertelli, Steve (PacifiCorp)

Subject: NUHP - flow ramping event 1-29-24
Date: Monday, January 29, 2024 5:30:56 PM
Attachments: CompForm SDSB+COPEG 1-29-24.pdf

Hello folks — It’s pretty rare lately to have a flow event that requires real-time reporting (within 5-
business days as defined in our Flow Monitoring Plan), but one occurred this morning as we were
manipulating flows among our log chute and spillgate to pass a large raft of woody debris that piled
up on the safety boom over the weekend. We passed several large woody debris logs (longer than
50 ft and larger than 2 ft diameter) in the largest possible size (as required by the License), but they
passed more slowly than we wished and thus required more flow manipulations than we initially
planned and resulted in an unanticipated deviation from our normal ramping limits. The flows are
relatively high and juvenile fish are mostly hunkered down this time of year, so negative impacts are
not likely while the positive impacts are the successful continuity of woody debris transport down
the river. The attached report has all the details and a couple pics - as always, let me know of any
questions.

Rich Grost

Aguatic Scientist

541-580-8332
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North Umpqua Hydroelectric Project

Compliance Incident Report — Soda Springs Bypass Reach and North Umpqua River
Reporting Date: 1-29-24
Contacts:

Rich Grost (NUHP aquatics) — 541-498-2617, rich.grost@pacificorp.com

Steve Albertelli (NUIMP-Program Manager) — 541-776-6676, steve.albertelli@pacificorp.com

Note: this report does not necessarily indicate a FERC compliance violation.

REPORTED BY: R. Grost
DATE + TIME OF INCIDENT 1-29-24,10:30to 11:15
INCIDENT LOCATION(S) Soda Springs Bypass Reach, North Umpqua River downstream from Soda

Springs Powerhouse (USGS 14316455, 14316500)

INCIDENT TYPE (circle or
highlight those that apply)

Minimum Streamflow / Ramping / Water Right;
Emergency Shutdown / Erosion / Water Quality / Accident / Other

MAGNITUDE (e.g. lowest flow,
or highest ramp rate recorded)

Bypass reach: Stage range between 15-minute unit values >1 ft (1.08 ft up)
Mainstem river: Stage range among 5 unit values >1 ft (1.12 ft down over 45
minutes)

DURATION (How long did the
incident occur before correction?)

1 hour of flow manipulations both up and down, flows returned to normal
immediately thereafter

INCIDENT DESCRIPTION

background condition
what happened?

causes and contributing
factors (e.g. weather)
unusual occurrences
preceding incident
immediate actions taken
long-term corrections
damage observed or
expected

other relevant
information

For the several days prior to this incident, the bypass reach had been at high
flows of 2-3,000 cfs and the mainstem at 4-5,000 cfs. Flows in both were
beginning to recede from the weekend’s high flow peaks.

The rain and snowmelt surge had created a new, large flotilla of trees, logs,
and forest debris on the Soda Springs safety boom that needed to be cleared
off. The FERC License requires passing large woody debris beyond the dam
in the largest sizes practical (rather than cutting them up). The best and
safest method for so doing is to pass them thru the log chute and spillway
when they are small and smooth enough to fit.

The crew and operators developed a plan to raise the safety boom (to free the
logs) at open the spillway to pass the debris as it arrived there. Much debris
passed successfully this way but some remained hung up on the boom. The
spillway flow was reduced back to normal and the log chute re-opened to
pass the remaining debris as it was broken loose. However, the spillway had
to be briefly shut to make the logs go thru the log chute instead of getting
trapped near the fish screen entrance. All large woody and associated debris
was passed successfully.

It was the combination of a flow pulse for passing some logs thru the
spillway, then a flow drop for passing the remaining logs thru the log chute,
that resulted in the range of water levels briefly exceeding the reporting
limits. Corrective actions were to restore gate settings and flows back to
normal immediately upon passage of the debris.

Damage was not assessed because this event occurred so briefly and was
corrected so quickly. Impacts to aquatic life are not likely since the
background flows were already so high and the lowest flows remained above
the level of recent flow in each reach. Also, exceedingly few fry are present
during January.

ADITIONAL COMMENTS

This report is based on provisional USGS data; figures from the USGS
website are attached below this report.
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